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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of iValue Infosolutions Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of iValue Infosolutions Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in which are included the Return for the year ended on
that date audited by the branch auditor of the Company’s branch located at Singapore.

2, Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and total comprehensive income
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, '

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed and the report of the other auditor as furnished to us (Refer paragraph 10
below), we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required t¢ report
that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor,

. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7.

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a goi P
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a.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

10.We did not audit the financial statements of 1 Branch included in the standalone financial statements of the

11,

Company, which constitute total assets of Rs. 6,664 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 2,175 lakhs as at March 31,
2023, total revenue of Rs.14,226 lakhs, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other
comprehensive income) of Rs. 821 lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 1,284 lakhs for the year then
ended. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose report have been furnished to
us by the management, and our opinion on the standalone financial statements (including other information)
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this branch, is based solely on the
report of such other auditor.

We did not audit the financial statements of 2 Branches located outside India included in the standalone
financial statements of the Company, which constitute total assets of Rs. 1,017 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 901
lakhs as at March 31, 2023, total revenue of Rs. 428 lakhs, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit
and other comprehensive income) of Rs. 169 lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs.4o lakhs for the year
then ended. The unaudited financial statements in respect of these branches have been provided to us by the
management, and our opinion on the standalone financial statements of the Company in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this Branch, is based solely on such unaudited financial
statements furnished to us. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by
the Management, these financial statements are not material to the Company,

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditor and the financial statements certified by the management.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. As required by the Companies (Auditor'’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

13. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit
have been received from the branches not visited by us.




ice aterhouse 8 Co Chartered Accountants LL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of iValue Infosolutions Private Limited
Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Page 4 of 5

(c)} The reports on the accounts of the branch office of the Company audited under Section 143(8) of the Act
by branch auditor have been sent to us and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing this report.

(d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account and with the returns received from the branches not visited by us.

(e) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

() On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 34 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the particular law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Note
20 to the financial statements,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023.

iv, (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 47 to the financial statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
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(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and {(b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi, As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which provides for
bocks of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and related matters in the accounting
software used by the Company, is applicable to the Company only with effect from financial year
beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently not applicable.

14. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies.
Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

¥

Arunkumar Ramdas

Partner

Membership Number: 112433
UDIN: 23112433BGYMOC8103

Place: Mumbai
Date; September 30, 2023
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ivalue
Infosolutions Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

5. Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, 252, Veer Savarkar Marg, Shiva
{West) Mumbai — 400 028
T: +91{22} 66691500, F: +91 (22) 66547804/ 07
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026 E/E-300009

e

Arunkumar Ramdas

Partner

Membership Number 112433
UDIN: 23112433BGYMOC8103

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 30, 2023
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i. {(a) (A)The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B} The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

{(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable,

(¢} The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note
3a, 3b and 4 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of our commenting on
whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the
amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each
class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does
not arise.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the
question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in
its financial statements does not arise.

ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasomable intervals by the
Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

{(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,
in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed
quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the unaudited
books of accounts (Also refer Note 53 to the financial statements).

i Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, 252, Veer Savarkar Marg, Shivaji Pavk;
© (West) Mumbai — 400 028
T: +91(22) 66691500, F: +91 (22) 66547804/ 07
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iii. (a) The Company has made investments in one company, granted unsecured loans to one Company /
one employee and stood guarantee to one company. The aggregate amount during the year, and
balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans, guarantee to
subsidiaries, and to parties other than subsidiaries are as per the table given below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Aggregate amount granted/ | Balance outstanding as at
provided during the year balance sheet date
Loan to employee 2 2
Loan to Subsidiaries 250 250
Guarantee on behalf of | 858 858
subsidiaries

(Also refer Note 6 and 38 to the financial statements)

(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments, guarantees and loans, the terms and conditions under
which such loans were granted, investments were made and guarantees provided are not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of the aforesaid loan, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated, and the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are
also regular in payment of interest as applicable.

(d) In respect of the aforesaid loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

(e} There were noloans which fell due during the year and were renewed/extended. Further, no fresh
loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing overdue loans.

(f) The loan granted during the year had stipulated the scheduled repayment of principal and
payment of interest and the same were not repayable on demand. There were no loans which
were granted during the year to promoters/related parties.

iv.  Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
the loans and investments made, and guarantees provided by it.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred
in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.
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vil. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of provident fund, professional tax, duty of customs and income tax,
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including employees’ state insurance, service tax, goods and services tax and other
material statutory dues as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

viii.

ix. (a)

{b)

(e)

(d)

(e}

examined by us, there are no statutory dues of provident fund, professional tax, income tax,
employees’ state insurance, service tax, goods and services tax dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of other statutory dues referred to in sub-
clause (a) as at March 31, 2023 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as
follows:

Name of | Nature | Amount | Period to which | Forum where the dispute is
the statute | of dues | (Rs. In | the amount relates | pending
lakhs)
The Custom | 4.2 FY 19-20 Commissioner of customs
Customs duty 1.1 FY 19-20 Superintendent  of  Special
Act, 1962 Intelligence and Investigation
Branch of customs
61.6 FY 20-21 Additional commissioner of
customs

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that
has not been recorded in the books of account.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest to any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority,

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.
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®

X. (a)

(b)

xi. {(a)

(b)

(e)

xii.

xiii.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-
4, as preseribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to
be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party
Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to
constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent, the
reporting under clause 3(xiti) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has an

internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.




Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Ivalue
Infosolutions Private Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023
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xvi. (a)

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192
of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the

(0

year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi}(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company,

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the

xviii,

xix,

Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not
have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether
the information provided by the management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
(Also refer Note 56 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under
Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.
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Page 6 of 6

xxi.  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in
this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

7

Arunkumar Ramdas

Partner

Membership Number 112433
UDIN: 23112433BGYMOC8103

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 30, 2023



INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

Particulars

[a]  Proparty, Plant and Equipment
{b] Right-of-use asseis
[c)  Other Intangible assets
{d)  Financial Assets
(i) Investments in subsidiaries
[ii] Other investments
(iii} Loans
(iv] Other financial assets
{e]  Income tax assets |net)
(Al Deferred tax assets [net)
g}  Other non-current assets
Non-gurrent assets

assats
Inventories
Financial Assets
{il Investments
(it} Trade receivables
(i)  Cash and cash equivalents
(iv)  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
{v] Loans
{vi} Other financial assets
(c) Other current assets
Current assats

Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
[a) Equity Share capital
(b} Preference Share capital
[¢) Other Equity
Equity

Noa-current llabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i} Lease Liabilitias
Current tax liabilities {net)
{c} Pravisions

{Il) Currant liabllities
{a) Financial Liabillties
(il Bosrowings
(i) Lease Liabilities
(il Trade payables
[a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises

{b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than {iii] (a} abave

{iv]  Other financial liabilities
[b] Contract liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Curvent llabilities

Equity and LiabiNties

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of aven date

For Prica Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountant LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Arunkumar Ramdas

Partner

Membership Number: 112433
Mace: Mumbai

Date: 5eptember 30, 2023

IVALLIZ

Asat
Note No. 31 March 2023
3a 613
a 2,956
E] 63
sa 625
Sh
6a 602
78 206
13 2,00
8,31 385
9a 221
7,724
10 15,383
5 1,15
1 68,919
12a 5,930
12b 1,343
&b 250
7b &
9b 4581
98,594
105.38
144 a2
14 (1) 125
15 29.653
30,109
4 1624
16 253
17a 413
3.290
18 4,233
4 303
19 64,386
20 194
1 ®
2 3692
176 5
72,849
106338

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of ivalue infoSolutions Private Limited

Plila
Managing Director
DiN: 02226978
Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29, 2023

Mo

Swaroop MV N
Chief Finandal Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29, 2023

As at
31 March 2022

K

Krishnaraj Sharma
Divector

DIN: 03091392

Mace: Bengaluru

Date: Septembeer 29, 2023

Lakshmammannl
Company Secretary
Membership No: 451625

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29. 2023

564
227

75

104
2,968
276
175
5,009

2312

4,503
41,577
2,949
1,950

234
2111
56.096

61.105

421
125
23,682
24.228

149
ELE]
175
707

1,700
129

110
781
3,196
51
36.170

61.105



INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

I. Revenue from Operations
1. Other Income

Incame (I + N}

urchases of Stock-in-trade
in inventories of Stock-in-trade
benefits expense
Finance Costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
QOther expenses

Expenses

before tax
Expense / {Benefit)
1) Current tax
{2} Tax adjustments for earlier years (Net)
{3) Deferred tax
Profit for the perlod

Vil Comprehensive Income

(i} ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
rements of post employment benefit obligations

il) Income tax relating to these items

{i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

{ii} Income tax relating to these items

Other Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive Income for the period (Vi+vil) (Comprising Profit {Loss) and

Note For the year ended
Na. 31 March 2023

23 173,743
24 772
174.515
25 169,895
26 {13,071)
27 3,396
28 768
29 410
30 5,062
166,450
8,055
31 2,131
66
31 (89)
5,947
1 {0)
{0
5,937

39
141
111

with the accompanying notes.

N LU=

InLa
For tha year ended
31 March 2022

127,907
786

128.693

114,441
1,009
2,305

896
25Q
3,607

122.508
6,185

1,639

{77
4,618

()
4,618

110

il
Income for
IX|Ea r equity share: -
Ba nRs.)
bl {in Rs.}
Arunkumar Ramdas
Partnar
Membership Number; 112433
Place: Mumbai

Date: September 30, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of ivalue InfoSolutions Private Limited

L]

Sunlikumar Pillal
Managing Director

DIN: 02226978

Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 29, 2023

$\J+)‘/§uw

Swaraop MV N
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29, 2023

Krishnaraj Sharma
Director

DiIN: 03091392

Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 29, 2023

Lakshmammanni
Company Secretary
Membership No: 451625
Place: Bengalury

Date: September 29, 2023



IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Standalons Statement of Cash Flowa for the year ended 31 Warch 2023

PARTICLILARS Notes

Depreciation and Amortisation sxpenses
Pravision for Employes stock appreciation rights
Interast Income
Met Galn on Invesimenis carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Unwinding of discount on security deposit
Gain on Termination of Leases
Net Falr vaiue foss / (galn) on derlvatives not designated as hedges
Unrealised [gain)/ loss on foreign currency translation
Finance costs
Bad Dwbts Wrirten off
Alk made f (r f) for Expactad credit loss on trede receivabies
Operating Profit before Weorking Capital Changes
Adjustments for
{Increass) / Decrease in Other financial assets
{Increase} / Decrease In inventories
{Increase} f Decreass in Trade Receivablas
(Incraass| f Dacreasa in Other Currant and Non current Assels
Increase / (Decrensa) in Trade Payables
Increase / (Dacreass) in Other Finandial Liabilities
" FaL }in P
Increase f {Decrease) in Contract Liapilities
Increase f (Decrease) in Current Liabillties
Cosh Gemerated from operations
t of refunds raceived}

ILCASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment made in subsidiary

P for purct af ji

Procesds from sale of investments

et P ds from withd | of fixed d its with banks
Lean given

Interast reseived

, Plant and Equipment {including capital advance)

Net Cash from/lused In) investing Activitles iB)
NIL.CASH FLOW FROM FINANCONG ACTIVITIES

(Repayment) of f Procaads from Current Borrowings

Repayment of Lease Liabllities

Finance cost Pakd
Nut Cash Flow from f (Used in) Financing Activities (€1

{Deeraase)/ ncrease (n Cash And Cash Equivalents [A+8+C)

and Cash Equivalents at the beginming of the year 122
and Cash Equival Wed on [ b 36

of enchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Non cash transactions fram Investing and Ansncing activities:

Boquisition of Right of use Assets 4
Assats 4
1
paid
as at 31 March 2022
expenses
paid

above Statement of Cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nates.
per our report of aven date

Price h & Co. Ch d we
Regisiration Numbar: 304026€/ E-30000%

per

Aamdas

Partner
Membership Mumbar: 112433
Phace: Mumbai

September 30, 2023

For tha Yaar Ended
21 March X3

a10
208
{333)
{123)
[k}
8|
&7
1196)
768
697
(43}

(377)
113,071)
(27,067

12,489}
13,746
17
37
(733
435

(550}
13,500)
7,011
1901
1252
369
70

2,534
(241)
IFARY

{1.839)
170
{170)
1.700
2,533

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Walue InfaSolutions Private Limited

Sunlikumar Plilal
Managing Director

DIN: 02226978

Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 29, 2023

Swaroop MY N
Chief Financlal Offfcer

Place; Bergaluru
Date; Septermnber 29, 2023

B,055

1436
9481

M Ea
(22)
11262}

*na
p 251

1525
1.575

2,950
2,049

21

2,928
611

(170}
32

2,928

123

IVALUZ=

For the Year Ended
31 March 2122

(161)
1,008
{8,778
{1,618
6,862

86
19
710
451

(75}

(2458)
767

(600)

11RRY

(1,835)
[138)
(2861

12,003)

{170
1978
5461

{330}

323

Krishnasaj Sharma
Director

DIN: 03091352

Place: Bengaluru

Date: Septembar 29, 2023

Lakshmasmrnanni
Company Secretary
Mambership No: A51625
Place: Bengaluru

Cate: Septambaer 29, 2023

6,185

1187
73712

1141

5,951
{2 744}

12 4641
13 dRay

1T ARaY
12 a6k

12,126)
5,055

0



IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31

March 2023

IVALU=

(Rs. In Lakhs)

o o Reserves & Surplus
Particulars Equity Share Capita) m::i:fhm Capital secuiiiies i TOTAL
Contribution premium eamings
Resarve

iialam;e s on 31 March 2021 an 15 - | 8538 10,526 19,610
Profit for the Year - - - 4,618 4,618
Other Comprehensive Income - [0) ]
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - . - - 4,618 1,618
Balance as on 31 March 2022 a7l 125 = 8,538 15,134 24,228
Profit far the Year - - 5,947 5,947
Other Comprehensive Income - - (0} [13]
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - 5,947 5,947
Deemed Capital Contribution {Refer Note 36) - - 24 - - 24
Balance a3 on 31 March 2023 471 125 28 8,538 21,001 30,199 |

# "0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.

The above Statement of Changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountant LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

p

Arunkumar Ramdas Sunilkumar Pillal
Partner Managing Director
Membership Number: 112433 DIN: 02226978

Place: Mumbai
Date; September 30, 2023

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29, 2023

N \,_,olk‘a\o

Swarcop MV N
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 29, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of iValue infoSolutions Private Limited

Lo,

shnaraj Sharma

Director
DiN: 03091392
Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 29, 2023

U W

Lakshmammanni

Company Secretary
Mernbership No: A51625

Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 29, 2023
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Background

Ivalue InfoSolutions Private Limited {the “Company”) is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. The
registered office of the Company is located at No. 903/1/1, 19th Main Road, 4th Sector, HSR Layout, Bangalore - 560 102. The
Company provides Digital Assets protection and Data, Network & Application {DNA) management with associated services
through 1000+ channel network with 75+ direct OEM partnership. Key verticals are BFSI vertical, eGovernance projects, ITeS
vertical, Telecom, Manufacturing, Education and Hospitality vertical {Categorized as i) Digital Asset Management and Protection
and (i) Software and Allied Support). The Company's registered office is in Bangalore and it has branches across India and
outside India {Singapore, Kenya and Bangladesh).

Summary of significant accounting policies

{a) Basis of preparation

This Note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Standalone financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

{i) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements are the separate financlal staterents of the Company. The financial statements comply in all
material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act}
{Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

{ii} Historical cost convention

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
-Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at fair value.
-Share based payments

{iii) New standard adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2022. These amendments did
not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.

{iv} New amendments issued but nat effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2023.

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The other
amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to ind
A3 12 as the Company’s accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment,

{v) Current -Mon current classification::

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria as set out in Division 11 of Schedule (1] to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of the company's business
and the time between acquisition of assets for trading and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the company has
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of classification of the assets and liabilities into current and
non-current.

{b) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments. The board of
directors of the company assess the financial performance and position of the company and make strategic decisions and
therefore are identified as chief operating decision makers. Refer note 40 for segment information.

{c] Foreign currency transiation

{i) Functional and Presentation Currency
Items included in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates {‘the functional currency’). The staRdatone.fimane
presented in Indian Rupee {Rs.), which is the functional and presentation currency,¢f
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{ii} Transactions and balances

Forelgn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. At the year-end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the year - end
exchange rates. The exchange differences arising from settlement of fareign currency transactions and from the year-end
restatement are recognised in profit and loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on & net basis within ‘Other Income’/‘Other Expenses’. Non-monetary itemns that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

{d) (i) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation in accordance with the contract with the customer.
This is achieved when control of the product has been transferred to the customer, which is generally determined when legal
title, physical possession, risk of obsolescence, loss and rewards of ownership pass to the customer and the Company has the
present right to payment, all of which occurs at a point in time upon shipment er delivery of the product.

Revenue from sale of goods and services are recognised based on transaction price agreed with customer as per the terms of
the contract and are stated net of discounts, rebates etc.

Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that significant reversa) will not occur.

Transaction price excludes taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government.

No significant element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term, which is consistent with market
practice.

The Company has assessed its revenue arrangements based on the specific criteria given in the Ind AS 115 “Revenue from
contracts with customers” to determine if it is acting as principal or agent basis which the Company has recognised revenue on
gross basis.

Contract liability is recognised when a payment is received from the customer before the Company transfers Boods or services
to the customer. As these are contracts that the Company expects, and has the ability, to fulfil through delivery of a non-
financial item, these are presented as advance from customers and are recognised as revenue as and when control of
respective goods is transferred, or service is provided to the customers under the agreements,

(i) Vendor programs

Funds received from vendors for product rebates and marketing/promotion programs are recorded as adjustments to product
costs, according to the nature of the program. The Company accrues rebates or other vendor incentives as earned based on
sales of qualifying products or as services are provided in accordance with the terms of the related program.

{lii) Other income -Custom Duty Credit Scrip
The discount on Custom Duty Credit Scrip is recognised on purchase of such Scrip.

(e} Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period Is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the company operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected vaiue, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to vtilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in branches where the Company is able to controal the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
branches where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or dirgctly in equity. In this case, the taxis also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

{f) Leases (As a Lessee)

Assets and liabilities arising from a iease are initially measured on a present value basis, Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

» fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

* variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index ar rate as at the
commencement date

» amounts expected to be payable by the company under residual value guarantees

* the exercise price of a purchase aption if the company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

* payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which
is generally the case for leases of the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to abtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in

a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market data} which

has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the company use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to praduce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

* the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

* any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
* any initial direct costs

* restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

(g} Impairment of non financial assets:

Property, plant and equipment and intangibie assets with finite life are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the-ga W other assets or

groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwilj4 Brﬁs&f?é reg s 3
VP - 4563
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{h) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits hefd
at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

{i) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for gaods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
Trade receivables are recognised initfally at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The company holds the trade receivables with the objective of
colfecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less loss allowance.

{i) Inventories

Traded goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of traded goods comprises cost of purchases. Cost of
inventortes also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are
assigned to individual itemns of inventory on weighted average basis. Costs are determined after deducting rebates and
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

{k) Investments (Other than Investments in Subsidiaries) and other financial assets

{i} Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss)
« those to be measured at amontised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of tha
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.
{ii} Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sale the financial asset.

{iii} Measurement

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

{iii} {a) Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are threa measurement categories into which the company classifies its debt
instruments:

» Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
Other Income using the effective interest rate method, Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in other gains/{losses). Impairment lasses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit
and loss.
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* Fair value through other camprehensive income {FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for
selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OC), except for the recognition of Impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in ather gains/{losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in statement of profit and loss.

* Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria far amortised cost ar FVOC! are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/{losses} in the period in which it arises. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income.

(iii) (b) Equity instruments

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the company's management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses an equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments are recognised in profit or oss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ {losses) in the
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses {and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FYOC|
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depands on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

{v) Derecognition of financlal assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

» the company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the
cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the company has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the company has not
transferred substantially alf risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.
Where the company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised If the company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the
company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement
in the financial asset.

{vi] Interest income on bank deposits and unwinding of interest on security deposits paid

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
financial instrument, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating EIR the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider
expected credit losses.
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{1) Derivative Instruments

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative investments. Derivatives do not meet the
hedge accounting criteria and hence they are classified as ‘held for trading’ for accounting purposes and are accounted for at
FVPL. They are presented as current assets or liabilities to the extent they are expected to be settled within 12 months after the
end of the reporting period. Derivatives are Initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.

{m}) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The fegally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

(n) Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. Al
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets, net of thair residual values, over
their estimated useful lives, The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses). Estimated useful life of assets used for
depreciation is as follows:

Nature of asset

Computers - 3 years

Office equipment- 5 years

Furniture and fixtures -10 years
Vehicles- 5 years

Others - Demo equipment's - 4 years

The estimated useful lives of vehicles is lower than the useful life prescribed under Schadule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, in
order to reflect the actual usage of the assets,

{o} Intangible Assets
Intangible assets (Computer Software) has a finite useful life and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Computer Software

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors is capitalised. Subsequent costs associated with
maintaining such software are recognised as expense as incurred. Cost of software includes license fees and cost of
implementation/system integration services, where applicable.

Amortisation Method and Period

Computer software are amortised on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method over their estimated useful life of 5 years,
from the date they are available for use, Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each
financial year end.

{p) Trade and other payables
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{q) Borrawings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as other gains/{losses).

Where the terms of a financial liabllity are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all
or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognlised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan
arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the
reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before
the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a conseguence of the breach.

{r) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(s) Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonaccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources emhodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

(t} Employee benefits

{t} Short term obligation:

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current emplovee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

{l1) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The Company has liabilities for earned leave that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service. These obligations are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using
the projected unit credit methad. The benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting
period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to
occur.




IVALVE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED . l L
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 I \, /\ __L ’ =

{1l1) Past-employment obligations: The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

{i) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity:

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit
credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the
statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

{il) Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The company
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

{iii) Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via share-appreciation rights. Liabilitles for the company's share
appreciation rights are recognised as employee benefit expense over the relevant service period. The liabilities are remeasured
to fair value at each reporting date and are presented as employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

{iv} Bonus plans
The Company recognise a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognise a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

{u} Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

{v} Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

» the profit attributable to owners of the company

* by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

{ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account;

* the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares

» the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

{w} Investments in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for impairment, if any. Investments in subsidiaries are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of investments exceeds its recoverable amount.

{x] Events after Reporting Date

Where events occurring after balance sheet date provide evidence of condlitions that existed at the end of reporting period, the
impact of such events is adjusted in financial statements. Otherwise, events after balance sheet date of material size or nature
are only disclosed. Y
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{v} Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement
of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.

Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the company's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are
more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally
assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

(i} Impairment of trade receivables;

Impairment of trade receivables is primarily estimated based an prior experience with and the past due status of receivables,
based on factors that include ability to pay and payment history. The assumptions and estimates applied for determining the
provision for impairment are reviewed perlodically.

{li} Estimation of Provision for Inventory

The Company’s Inventory levels are based on the projections of future demand and market conditions. Any sudden decline in
demand and/or rapid product improvements and technological changes could cause us to have excess and/or obsolete
inventory. On an ongoing basis, the Company reviews for estimated excess or obsclete inventory and makes appropriate
provision to inventory to bring to its estimated net realizable value based upon forecasts of future demand and market
conditions.

(ii§) Share-based payments
The fair valuation of employee share appreciation rights requires use of certain assumptions and estimates as given in Note 42,
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Investment
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I t In equity {fully paid-up and Unguoted) ak cost
100,000 (31 March 2022 : 100,000} equity shares of Asia ivalue Pte Ltd of face value of USD 1.00 75 75
668,025 {31 March 2022 : NIl| equity shares of ASPL Info Sarvices Private Limited of face valua of As 10.00 550
Total 625 75
Particulars As ot As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Investment in Compulsorily Convertible Debentures {Fully paid-up, Unquoted) valued at FYTPL
il {31 March 2022: 2,950,000) Compulsorlly Convertible Cebenture of face value Rs.100 esch itsuad by iUnite Technologies Private
Lim/ted

Total

Mote: The Company had subscribed 10 2,950,000 Compulsorily Debenture [CCD) with & face value of Rs.100 each, issued by iUnita Technologins Private on 10 2018. Such
wara Convartible within 10 years from the date of i at 3 price d by an Independunt valuer sppointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, The CCD bear an interest

rate of 0.001% and interest shall acerue and it will be converted into Equity Shares on the Conversion Date. In the current year pursuant to a schemna of arrangement the Compulsory Convertible

&b

Ta

7h

was axtinguished, Refer Note 36 for detalls.

Current
Particulars Asat

31 March 2023
Investments In Mutusl funds at FVTPL {Quoted)
27,612 Units (31 March, 2022 - 91,562 units} In LIC MF Liquid Fund - Regular Plan- Growth 1,115
NIl {31 March, 2022 - 3,083,810 units) in LIC MF Savings Fund - Regular Plan- Growth
Total 1115
Particulars As at

31 March 2023
[Unsecurad, consldatad good unless otherwise stated)
Loans to Emplovees 602
Total ANy
Partlculars Asat

31 March 2023
[Unsacurad, consldoved good unbess otherwise stated)
Loans to Relatad party (Refer Nobe 38| 250
Total =0
Particudars Ag ot

31 March 2023
(Unsacured, considered good unbass otharwise stated)
- Rant Deposits 173
- Electricity Daposits 1

maturity more than 12 months from balance sheet date® 122

Total 296

“Daposits with banks includes Rs.98 Lakhs (31 Mareh 2023 : R 24 Lakhs] deposited with banks as Margin Money Deposit for Buyers Credit, Bill discounting, Letter of Credit, Bank Guarantees issved as

Collateral Sacurity.

Particulars As at

21 March 2023
{Unsecored and Consldersd good unbess otherwlse stated)
Other Deposits
Other Receivable from related parties (Refer Note 38)
Vendor receivables 448
Interest nccrusd on deposits with banks 17
Interest accrued on Loan to related party ?
Total Fag]
Mote: Vendor receivablas partains o marketing mxp reimbursable from Driginal Equipment Manufactures.
Daferved tax assets (Net}
Particulars Asat

31 march 2023
Defarred tax assets in relation to:
Property, plant and 2quip depraclation and gible assets isati SL
Allowance for Expected cradit loss on Trade receivables 174
Gt beneflts and comg iy ag
Leazs liabllities 737
Provision for Emplayee stock appreci rights 68
Security depotit 30
Daferrad tax Babllity in relation to:
Right of use assets 744
Security deposit
Total = f 111 365

* Mumbai ¥

Ay at
31 Masch 2022

3,503

1 don
4503

As ot
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2022

As o
31 Wawch 2022

78
1
25
i04

As at
31 Mawrch 2022

14

171
10

As ot
31 March 2022

51
40

17

57
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Standalone fi

Particulars

[Unsecured, constdered good uniess otherwise stated)

Balance with Governmant Authorities (Payments made under protest}
Capital Advancas

(1]

Considarad good unfass otherwise stated)

Pre-Paid Expenses
Balances with Government Authorities
Custom Duty Credit Scrip
to suppliers for goods and tarvices
to ralated partins for supgliers for goods and services [Refer Note 383)
Intersst receivable on income tax refund

Particulars

Stock-in-trade
Total

*Stock-in-trade includes goods In transit Rs 20 Lakhs (31 March 2022 ; Rs.71 Lakhs}

As at
31 March 2023

120
101
bl

As at
31 March 2023

3,472
332
489

As at
31 March 2023
15,383
15383

IVALLI=Z

n
As at
31 March 2022
141
3
175
Ag at
31 March 2022
26
699
589
a2
650
44
As at
31 March 2022
2,312
3212

*“Reversal of write-downs of inventorles to net realisable value amounted to Rs 347 Lakhs in the current year whereas theré was write-downs of inventories 1o net realisable value

amounting to Rs. 1,116 Lakhs in the previous year. These were racogniswd and included in ‘Changes in inventorles of Stock-In-trade’ In statement of profit and loss.

Particulars Asat
31 March 2023
Digital Azcal Manacsrmant and Prataction £.996
Software and Allied Support 6.387
Total 15383
Particutars
Trade recefvabl idered goad ]
Trade bl idered good - d
Trade recelvables which have significant increase in credit rish
Trade recelvables - credit impaired
Total
Loss Allowance
Total
Partlculars
Mot Due
[i} Undisputed Trade ivables - idered good 51,921
i Und i Trade recsivables - o arad deahEul
lil) Disputed Trade Receivablas - considered good
il Db { Trade R hlee - coneidarad deshtful
31 March 2022
Particdars
Mot Due
(i) Undisputed Trade receivablas - idered good 33,139
fii} Undi: ] Trade recefvables - considered doubtful
{iii} Disputed Trade Receivablas - deran i
ihvl Disnuted Trade Racaluables - sonsidered daubtful

Asat
21 March 2022

1.624
1312

Less than 6
manihs

14,525

Gmonths- 1
whar
2,010

1-2 yoars

975

Lass than &
maathe

7,403

& months- 1
wear
1,381

1-2 yaars

250

In
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
69,611 42,712
69,611 42,7112
735
58.819 21.977
2-3yanes Mare than 3 years
&l 65
53
2-3 years More than 3 years
111 194
194
% arlerey

* fumbat *

Total

69,558

53

Total

42,518

194
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fa)

{b)

(e}

IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED i \f A Ll ’ E

Motas farming part of the Stendalone finandial

Particulars As ap Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash on Hand 2 2
Balances with banks
=in Current Accounts 4,428 2,947
- Deposit with Banks with less than 3 months initlal maturity 1500
Totsl 5930 2.a4%
Particulass AL ¥ As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deposits with banks with maturlty of 12 months or less from balance sheet date* 1,943 1,950
Total 1943 1950

*Deposits with banks includes Rx,.340 Lakhs (31 March 2022 : Rs.385 Lakhs) depozited with banks as Margin Money Deposit for Buyers Credit, Bill discounting, Latter of Credit, Bank Guarsntees issyed
as Collateral Sacurity

Income tax assets In
Particulars Asat As at

31 march 2023 31 March 2022
Advance income tax 2,003 2,968
{Het of provisicon for Income tax of Rs 6,757 Lakhs, 31 March 2022 of As 4,566 Lakhs)
'rotal w3 > GRS

In

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised share capltal
5,000,000 31 March 2022: 5,000,000) Equity Shares of fs.10 sach 500 500
Issued, Subscribed and Pald-up
4,210,715 {31 March 2022 4,211,067} Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid- up 421 471
Total an a
#referenca Share In
Particulars As at Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Compulsosily Convartible Preference shares

Authorised share caplital
2,000.000 {31 March 2022: 2.000.0001 Comoulsorlv Convertible Prafarance charas af <. 10 aach N I
Issuad, Subscribed and Paid-up
1,250,025 (31 March 2022; 1,250,025) Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of fis. 10 sach fully paid- up 125 125
Total 125 125
Particulars Ag ¥t 31 March 2022

Numbar Mumber Value in Rs Lakhs
Equity shargs
Bulance at the beginning of the year 4,211,067 421 4,211,067 421
Increase f [Decrease} during the year (352) o*
Balsnee at the end of the vear 4110715 a1 4211 087 a1
amo"d that the are below ding oft
Pursuant to the scheme of arrangement, the shares of tha Company held by iUnite Technologies Privata Limited were trasferred to the shareholders of iUnite Tachnclogies Private Limited Refer Nota
36 for datnils
Particulars

MNumber Humbar Viluein Rs Lakhs
Sharas iing at; the beginning of the year 1,250,025 125 1,250,025 125
Incraase f {Decrease) during the yaar - .
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,250,025 135 1,250,025 125

Rights, praferences and restrictions sttaching to each dass of sharas:

1) The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Fs.10 per share Each sharsholder is sligible for one vote per share hald. They entitle the bolder to participate in
dividends, snd to share in the p ds of ding up the company In proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held

1) The Company has one class of preferences shares i.e. Series A Compulsorily Convertible preference shares | "CCP5" | of face value Rs. 10 each,

(a) The CCPS shall confar on the holder, the right to recelve, in pricrity to the holders of equilty shares, the dividend as when the Board declares a dividend

|5} The dividend on CCPS shall be cumulative.

{¢) Tha holdar of CCPS is entitled to raceive equity share in an agreed ratio at the earliust of first closing date {i.e. April 30, 2019) or at the end of 19 years.

{d) CCPS when converted into equity shares, shail rank pari passu with the existing equity shares of the Company in all respacts.

{@) The C: hes received an Intimation from the CCPS holders that they hava not axercised the option of conversion to squity 8s at March 31, 2023,

% CO

* Mumbat ¥
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Standalone 1 lal

iIVALLI=Z

Shares held
Particulars Ag ut Az at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Equity Shares held by IUnite Technologies Private Limited (the holding compoany) 2.475 357
Name of Shareholder Ag at 31 March 2023
Na of sharas % Mo of sharos -“
iunite Technologies Private Limited- the holding company 2,475,352 53%
Sundara { Mauritlus] Limited 643,133 15% 643,133 15%
Sunil Kumar Plllal 809,377 19% 339,127 8%
Krishna Raj Sharma 522,144 1% 150,594 4%
Hilda Sunil Pillai 399,768 9% 1]
Srinivasan Sriram 338,901 B% 0%
Venkatesh R 310,821 ™ %
Subodh Anchan 285,728 % 0%
Row Abraham Yohannan 268.124 6% 0%
Convertible
At at 31 March 2023 As at 21 March X123
No of shares % Mo of tharse %
1280875 100%, 1.250.025 100%
Pramober Name As at 31 March 2023 A ot 31 March 2022 9% Change during the year
No. of Shares % of total shares  No. of Shares % of total shares nded 31 March 2023
1) Sunil Kumar Pillai B809.377 19% 339127 A% 11%
2} Krithna Aaj Sharma 522 144 12% 150 B34 A% %
3) Seinlvasan Sriram 338 901 A% a1 4m 2% %
Total 1670422 EETS 5A1 477 14% 5%
Particutars As at As at
21 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balanca as at tha beginning of the y=ar 8,538 8,538
Add : Prem|um on Shares issued during the year
Balanca as at tha end of the year A538 BS3R
b. Retalmad earnings
Balance as at the beginning of the year 15,144 10.526
Net Proflt for the year 5,947 4,618
R of post-employ banefit obligation, net of Tax il o}
Balanca as at the end of the year 2100 15.144
€ D d Capltal G ik (Refar Nota 36} 24
Tatal 29.653 23.682
# "0" danotes that the smounts are below convantion.
Nature and purpose of ¥ prami
Securities premium s used to record tha premium on issue of shares. The resarve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
Particutars As at As
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for tanation 53 3e3
Tota 253 383
Parthculars As ot As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for emplayee beneflis
Pravision for gratulty [Refer Note 33) 141 107
Provision for Employee stock appreciation rights {Refar Note 42 7 =]
Total 413 175
Particulass As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2002
Provislan for employes benefits
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 33} 14 19
Provision for 1 ab: [Refer Note 33) aq 32
Total 53 51
&
WP -4
o
GE/E

* Mumbai *
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

Particulars

Secured Losng

Loant from banks repayabis on demand
Rupee loan from banks {al

Total

[a)The Company has availed working capltal loans from company’s bankars which is secured by first charge on a pari-passu basis on the whoke of cutrent asssts of the C

As at
31 March 2083

4711
433

iIVALU=

Asat
1 March 2022

1.700
110

trade receivables, outstanding monias, atc. both present and future including movable fixed assats of the Company, both present and future, collateral security an immovable properties and personal
guarantes of the directors The Interest rate on the working capital loan ranges between 5,4% to 8.3 % per annum.

Particulars

[a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {Refer Note 35}
[b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

[el Trade pavable to related parties (Rafer Note 38}
Fotal

Trade sthedubs as 3t March

Particulars

fiju Micro
{ii) Undizputed-Others

prisas and small entecprises

{iil} Disputed duas - Micro enterprises and small entarprises

[rv} Disputed duws - Others

Trade schedule as at March 2022

Particulars

[I} Undisputed-Micro enterprises and small snterprises
i} Undisputed-Others

[ifi) Disputed dues - Micro enterprizes and small anterprises

[} Disputed dues - Others

Qther fnancinl Habilltias
Particudary

Derivative liabilities {(Forelgn curreney forward contracts)

Other payables
Total

Contract Mebllities
Particulars

Advanee from Customars
Unearned revenue
Tatal

Baisnce at beginning of the year

Amourt raceivad during the year against which revenue has

not bean recognized

Revenue recognized during the year
Lass: Others

Balanca at the and of the year

Other Current Liahilities
Particulara

Statutory Dues
Totsd

Unbiled

7651

Unbilled

1,619

As ot
31 March 2023
a1

75

O TR T +

As ot
31 March 2023

64,137

249
&4 6

s from the due date

far s

Not Due Less than 1 Yam 1-2 Years

46,430 9,594 355

Not Dus Less than 1 Yaar 1-2 Years

24,547 2,606 46

Asat
3 March 2022
0

a7
26

78

*

2-3 Years

36

tha due date
2-3 Yaars

As at
31 March 2033
67
127
1%

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2023
3,632

Mumbai *

As ot
31 March 2022

30,186

17
203

More than 3 Years

330 64,386

Mose than 3 Years

a3 30,203

In
Asat
21 Mk 2022
24
86
110

As at
31 March 2022

667
78

As at
31 March 2022
3,196
3.196
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

Revenue from

Particulars

Revenue from Contracts with customers

Domestic Sales
Digital Asset Management and Protection
Software and Allied Support

Exports Sales
Digital Asset Management and protection
Software and allied support

Total

Other Income
Particulars

Interest Income from bank deposits
Net Gain on Investments carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss [Includes
Net Unrealised Fair Value Gains arisen during the year of Rs. 59 Lakhs {Previous

Year - Rs. 3.3 Lakhs)]
Unwinding of discount on security deposit

Gain on Termination of Leases

Interest on Income tax refunds

Net Fair value (loss} / gain on derivatives not designated as hedges
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation

Income from Custom Duty Credit Scrip

Other Non-operating income

Total

Purchases of Stock-in-trade

Particulars

Purchase of traded goods
Digital Asset Management and Protection
Software and Allied Support

Total
Cha in of Stock-in-Trade
Particulars

Closing balance

Less: Opening balance

Net {Increase) / decrease
& Co.
LLPIN

/E
* Mumbai *

For the period ended
31 March 2023

62,216
95.460
157,676

4,064
12,003
16,067

173,743

For the period ended
31 March 2023

198
123

18
135
(67)
141

212
772

For the period ended
31 March 2023

54,642
115,253
169,895

For the period ended
31 March 2023

15,383
2,312
(13,071

Rs. in Lakh
For the year ended
31 March 2022

36,171
76.421
112,592

4,469
10,846
15,315

127,907

{Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended
31 March 2022
95
36

(24)
295
123
211
786

{Rs.In La
For the year ended
31 March 2022

31,091
83,350
114,441

In Lakhs)
For the year ended
31 March 2022

2,312
3,321
1,009
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

Benefits
Particulars

{a) Salaries and Wages

{b} Contributions to Provident fund (Refer Note 33)
(c) Gratuity expense {Refer Note 33)

(d) Staff welfare expenses

(e) Employee stock appreciation rights (Refer note 42}
Total

Finance Costs

Particulars

Interest on working capital loan

Interest charge on lease liabilities

Interest on Bill Discounting

Interest on delayed payment of Statutory Dues
Interest on others

Total

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Particulars

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {Refer Note 3a)
Depreciation of right of use assets {Refer Note 4)

Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 3b)

Total

Other Expenses
Particulars

Advertisement and Sales Promotion
Professional and Consultancy Charges
Repairs and Maintenance - Others
Electricity Charges
Rent
Rates & Taxes
Travelling & Conveyance
Telephone & Internet Expenses
Bank Charges
Auditor's Remuneration

-for Statutory audit

-for Other Services
Loss allowance made / (reversed) for ECL on Trade receivables
Bad debts Written off
Less: Loss allowance for ECL on Trade receivables (Utilised)
Commission
Software Subscription Charges
Insurance
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses {Refer N
Miscellanecus expenses
Total

(27 TRV RS0\

* Mumbai *

For the period ended
31 March 2023

2,984
87

34

87
204
3,396

For the period ended
31 March 2023

200
123
425

20

768

For the period ended
31 March 2023

109

299

2

410

For the period ended
31 March 2023

1,246
588
41
26

17

29
306
23

73

24
3
331
697
(374}
1,578
142
112
83
117
5,062

{Rs. In Lakhs}
For the year ended
31 March 2022

2,125

65

24

23

68

2,305

{Rs. In Lakhs])
For the year ended
31 March 2022
170
32
686
5
3
896

{Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended
31 March 2022
95
155

250

Inla
For the year ended
31 March 2022

352
286
6
10
4
13
47
21
64

22

179
169

2,125
34
118
77

80
3,607



IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

Note 31 - Taxation

IVALLUI=

{a) Income tax expense {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current tax
Current tax on Profit for the year 2,131 1,639
Tax adjustments for earlier years (Net) 66 5
Total current tax expenses 2,197 1,644
Deferred tax
Decrease f(Increase) in deferred tax assets {756} {40)
(Decrease) /Increase in deferred tax liabilities 667 (37)
Total deferred tax expenses/(benefit) (89) {77)
Income tax expense 2,108 1,567
{b} Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplies by India tax rate
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit from operations before income tax expense 8,055 6,185
India tax rate 25.2% 25.2%
Tax at India tax rate 2,027 1,557
Tax adjustments for earlier years {Net) 66 5
CSR Expenses permanently disallowed 21 10
Others (6) (5)
Income tax expense 2,108 1,567

#"0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.




IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

{C) Deferred tax assets / liabilities as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

IVALLUI=

Particulars Opening Amount credited / Amount credited / Net recognised
balance  (charged)in Profitand {charged) in Other Deferred tax asset
Loss Afc Comprehensive Income and Liability

Deferred tax assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment depreciation and 51 {0} - 51

Intangible assets amaortisation

Allowance for Expected credit loss on Trade 185 (11) - 174

receivables

Retirement benefits and compensated absences 40 9 0 49

Provision for Employee stock appreciation rights 17 51 68

Lease liabilities 60 677 - 737

Security deposit - 30 - 30

Deferred tax Hability in retation to:

Right of use assets 57 687 - 744

Security deposit 20 {20} - -

Tatal 276 89 0 365

# "0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.

{d) Deferred tax assets / liabilities as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Opening Amount credited / Amount credited / Net recognised
balance {charged) in Profitand  [charged) in Other Deferred tax asset

Loss Afc Comprehensive income and Liability

Deferred tax assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment depreciation and 47 4 - 51

Intangible assets amortisation

Allowance for Expected credit toss on Trade 140 45 - 185

receivables

Retirement benefits and compensated absences 34 6 (0) 40

Provision for Employee stock appreciation rights - 17 - 17

Lease llabilities 91 {31) - 60

Deferred tax liability in relation to:

Right of use assets a5 {38) - 57

Security deposit 13 2 - 20

Total 199 77 {0) 276
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

Additional Information to the Financial Statements

34

35

36

a7

liabilities n
As at As at

Particul
articulars 31March2023 31 March 2022

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

Customs 169 137
-Pertain to demands raised by the Principal Commissioner of Customs of Delhi &

Bengaluru. These demands relate to short payment of customs duty on account of

incorrect classification of such imported matertals, for the purpose of computation of

custom duty

-In respect of above, It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash

outflow owes, if any, pending resolution of the respective proceedings. The Company

does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above.

b) Commitments:
1} Capital commitments (net of advance):
There are no Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period or as at 31 March 2022

ii} Other Commitments:
There are no other commitments at the end of the reporting period or as at 31 March 2022

Disclosures required for Micro and Small Enterprises:

There are no delayed payments to Micro and small enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 during the year and hence disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with
interest paid/payable to those supplier as required under the said Act have not been given.

iValue Infosolutions Private Limited {Transferee Company) and ilUnite Technologies Private Limited {Transferor Company} had
filed an appiication under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation on 14th
December 2020 before the National Company Law Tribunal, Bengaluru Bench ("NCLT"). Company has received an order dated
June 8, 2022 whereby NCLT has approved the above scheme and hence the balances of the transferor company has been
included in the financial statements of the transferee company in the current year from the effective date as per the
order.Considering that the acquisition of group of assets acquired pursuant to the amalgamation did not constitute a business,
the Company identified and recognised the individual identifiable assets acquired {Rs 723 lakhs) and liabifities assumed (Rs 700
lakhs) as at the effective date and recorded excess of assets acquired over liabilities assumed as “Deemed capital contribution”
under "Other Equity” of Rs 23 lakhs.

Corporate sodial responsibility expenditure

tn terms of provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the company is required ta spend 2% of its average net profit for
the immediately preceding three financial years on prescribed corporate social responsibility (CSR) Activities, The funds were
contributed to eligible trusts for carrying out activities as specified in Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013, A CSR committee
has been formed by the company as per the Act.

InLa

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year 82 75
{b} Amount spent during the year on:
- Construction / acquisition of any asset
- On purposes other than above

a) In cash 82 77

b} Yet to be paid
{c) Shortfall at the end of the year
{d) Total of previous years shortfall
{e) Details of related party transactions
{f) Accrual towards unspent obligations -

% Co.

* Mumbai *



IVALUE JINFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

33  Related party transactions

IVALLI=

Details of related parties:
Description of relationship Nama of related parties

1} Sunil Kumar Pillai- Managing Director
2] Krishna Raj Sharma- Director
3] Kabir Kishin Thakur- Director

{ii] Key management persannet
1} Asia ivalue Pte. Ltd

{iii} Wholly owned Subsidiary

{iv) Subsidiary

{v) Enterprise exercising significant influence  [Sundara Mauritius Ltd

2) ivalue S L {Private) Limited {From 06 July 2021)
3} ivalue Infosolutions Sea Co., LTD (From 24 March 2022}

{i} Immediate and Ultimate Holding Company |iUnite Technologies Private Limited {amalgamated on 08 June 2022)

1) ASPL Info Services Private Limited [From 16 February 2023}

A. The following transactions occurred with related parties:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended

1. Sales and purchases of goods and services

a) Sales of stock in trade:
Holding Company
Subsidiary Company [Asia iValue Pte Ltd)
Subsidiary Company {45PL Info Services Private Limited)

b) Purchase of stock in trade;
Subsidiary Company {Asia iValue Pte Ltd}
Holding Company

2, Other transactlons

) Reimbursement of Expenses from:-
Enterprise exercising significant influence
Subsidiary Company {Asia iValue Pte Ltd)
Holding Company

b) Key management personnel compensation
Sunil Kumar Fillai
Krishna Raj Sharma

amounts pertaining to Key Management Personnel are not included.

<} Investment made in Subsidiary Company {Asia iValue Pte Ltd}
Subsidiary Company {Asia iValue Pte Ltd})
Subsidiary Company {ASPL Info Services Private Limited}

d) Loan given:
Subsidiary Company {ASPL Info Services Private Limited)

) Other Non-QOperating Income:
Subsidiary Company (ASPL Info Services Private Limited) {Interast Income)
Enterprise exercising significant influence

f) Liability no longer payable:
Subsidiary Company {Asia iValue Pte Ltd)

g} Bad Debts:
Subsidiary Company {Asia iValue Pte Ltd}

h} Corporate Guarantee;
Subsidiary Company (Asia iValue Pte Ltd)

*As the liabilities for defined benefit plans are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the

270

245

13

il
70

550

250

11

858

31 March 2022

543
12

10

ag

59
55

75

o




IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

VAL L=

3. Outstanding balances:

a) Trade Receivables;
Holding Company {iUnite Technologies Private Limited )
Subsidiary Company {Asia iValue Pte Ltd)

b} Trade Advance:
Subsidiary Company (Asia Value Pte Ltd)

¢) Trade Payables:
Holding Company {iUnite Technologies Private Limited )
Subsidiary Company {Asia iValue Pte Ltd)

d} Other receivables
Holding Company (iUnite Technologies Private Limited )
Subsidiary Company (Asia iValue Pte Ltd)
Enterprise exercising significant influence

&} Loans to Related Parties:
Subsidiary Company {ASPL Info Services Private Limited)

f} Interest accrued on Loans to Related Parties:
Subsidiary Company {ASPL Info Services Private Limited)

f) Corporate Guarantee:
Subsidiary Company (Asia iValue Pte Ltd)

h} Salary and reimbursement related Payable to Key management perscnnel
Sunil Kumar Piliai
Krishna Raj Sharma

354

249

29

250

858

# "0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention.

Notes:

a) The transactions with related parties were at normal commercial terms. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free (other

than [oan given to subsidiary} and settlement occurs in cash.

b} The Director’s of the Company have given personal guarantees to Bank's against borrowings made by the Company.

¢} There were no loans due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them severally or jointly with any other persons or amounts due by
firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a member other than loan given as stated in the above disclosure.

Earnings Per Share

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Profit attributable to the equity holders of tha company used in ¢al¢ulating basic and diluted EPS (Rs. In 5,947 4,618
Lakhs)

Weighted average number of equity shares {Nos.) for calculating basic earnings per share 4,210,715 4,211,067
Add: Adjustment for calculation of diluted earnings per share {Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares) 1,143,320 1,143,320
Weighted average number of equity shares {Nos.} for calculating Diluted earnings per share 5,354,035 5,354,387
Basic EPS attributable to the equity holders of the Company {Rs.} 141 110
Diluted £PS attributable to the equity holders of the Company {Rs.) 111 86
Norninal value of shares (Rs.) 10 10
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40

41

42

Disclosure of segment

a) The Company is primarily engaged in a single business of providing i} Digital Asset Management and Protection and (i} Software and Allied Support
and is governed by similar set of returns

b) Entity wide disclosure:

i) The Company is domiciled in (ndia. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the customers is shown below:

{Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended 31 For the year ended

March 2023 31 March 2022
India 157.676 112.592
Rest of the world 16,067 15,315
Total 173,743 127,907

ii) The amount of non-current assets of the Company (excluding Financial Assets, income tax assets and deferred tax assets) located in India and rest of
the world is shown below:

{Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year anded 31 For the year ended

March 2023 31 March 2022
India 3,839 986
Rest of the world 13 4
Total 3,852 986

# 0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention

iii) No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues from external customers during the year ended 31 March, 2022. Revenues
of approximately INR 18,284 lakhs for the current year is derived from a single external customer mainly from (ndia.

The Company is a distributor of products of Original Equipment Manufacturer's {OEM) which are backed by warranty from the OEM's, Hence, the
Company does not have any obligation towards warranty on sale of such products.

Sharae based payment Share appraclation rights [SAR):

The Cormnpany has granted 59,040 SAR to certain eligible employees in the previous year. Further it granted additional 1,44,060 SAR in the current year,
These are split into 40% linked to retention condition and 60% linked to performance condition. Qut of these 20,064 SAR lapsed and 1,08,912 SAR
vested in the current year and with 74,124 SAR yet to be vested as at March 31, 2023. These SAR have a strike price of Rs 10 and Rs 700,

The retention linked SAR shall vest at end of one year from the Relevant Date of the Grant. The performance linked SAR shall vest equally over a
period of five years. The vesting will be one year from the completion of the respective financial Year for which performance is evaluated.

Exercise Period will be such time period during a Liguidity Event, as may be decided by the Compensation Committee, from time to time,

For the SAR's issued in the current year the date of grant of option is 02 March 2023 and the expiry of option is 01 March 2027 and for the SAR's issued
in previous year the date of grant of option is 1 October 2021 and date of expiry of option is 30 September 2026.

Expenses towards SAR's is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the vesting period of the SAR's and a corresponding
liability is recognised within Non current provisions. Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions has been recognised in profit or
loss as part of employee benefit expense. Refer Note 27,

The Liability is remeasured at each balance sheet date and changes to the carrying amount of the liability is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

The fair value of the SAR's was determined using the Black-Scholes model using the following inputs at the grant date and as at 31 March 2023:

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Share price at measurement date {INR per share) 752 725
Expected volatility {%) 0.01% 0.01%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 7.17% 5.65%
Carrying amount of liability — included under Non current provision {see note 272 68
17 a) {INR}

None of the 5ARs had vested as at 31 March 2023.
Details of benami property held

There are no proceedings that have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 [as amended from time to time] {earlier Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988} and the rules made thereunder

&

GEfE-
* Mumbai *
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26

47

49

51

s2

53

S5

Willful defaulter
The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

Relationship with struck off companles
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layars prescribed under ctause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies {Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017, and there are no companies beyond the specified layers.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

{a} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds [either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any
other person(s) or entity(ies}, including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Intermediary shall

{i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”); or

{ii} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entityiies), including foreign entities {“Funding Party”) with the understanding
{whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the company shall

{i}) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Uitimate
Beneficiaries); or

{ii)provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Undisclosed Income

The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961},
Further, there was no previously unrecorded income and no additional assets were required to be recorded in the books of account during the year.

Detalls of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current year or previous year. Further, the Company
has also not received any deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency.

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the current or previous year.

Title deeds of immovable property not held in the name of the Company
The title deeds of alt the immovable properties are in the name of the Company. The agreements for immovable properties where the company is the
lessee are duly executed in favour of the lessee,

Registration of charges or satisfaction with the Reglstrar of Companies
During the current year or previous year, there were no charges or satisfaction of charges which were registered with the Registrar of Companies
heyond the statutory period.

Borrowing secured against current assats

The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with
such banks are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company. The Company does not have borrowings fram financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets.

Utllisation of Borrowlngs Availed from Banks and Financial Institutions
The borrowings obtained by the company from banks have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken.

Compliance with approved schama of arrangament
Schemne of Arrangernent as described in Note 36 has been accounted for in the books of account of the Company in accardance with the approved
Scheme and in accordance with accounting standards and there are no deviation in this regard.
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56 Financial Ratioc Analysis:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 Change In % Reason for Change
{Note]

{a) Current Ratio (in Times) 1.4] 1.6 -13%

{b) Debt-Equity Ratio {in Times) 0.2 0.1 190% Note 2 {a)

{c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in Times) 10.0/ 2.6 279% Note 2 (b}

{d} Return on Equity Ratio {in %) 22% 21% 4%

(&) Inventory Turnover Ratio [in Times) 19.6 45.4 -57% Note 2 {¢)

(f} Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio {in Times) 31 3.4 -7%

{g} Trade Payables Turnover Ratio [in Times) 3.7 4.4 -16%

{h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio {in Times} 7.6 6.7 14%

{i) Net Profit Ratio [in %) 3% 4% -5%

{j] Return on Capital Empioyed {in %} 26%) 28% -6%

{k} Return on Investment {in %) 7% 8% -14%)

1} Descriptions of ratios:

a. Current Ratio: Current Assets / Current Liabilities

b. Debt - Equity Ratio: Total Debt / Shareholder’s Equity

c. Debt Service Coverage Ratio: Earnings available for debt service / Debt Service

i] Earnings available for debt service: Net Profit befare taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortizations + Interest +
other adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc.

ii) Debt Service: Jnterest and Lease Payments + Principal Repayments

d. Return on Equity (ROE): Net Profits after taxes / Average Shareholder’s Equity

e, Inventory Turnover Ratio: Sales / Average Inventory

f. Trade receivables turnover ratio: Net Credit Sales / Average Accounts Receivable

g. Trade payables turnover ratio: {Net Credit Purchases + Relevant other expenses) / Average Trade Payables

h. Net capital turnover ratio: Net Sales / Average Working Capital (Working capital is current assets less current liabilities)
i. Net profit ratio: Net Profit / Net Sales

j- Return on capital employed (ROCE): Eaming before interest and taxes / Capital Employed where

Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt - Deferred Tax Assets

k. Return on investment: Net profits after taxes / Average Total Assets

2) Clarification for Changes (Notes):

3. Debt Equity ratio has increased due to increase in the Total debt in proportion greater than increase in shareholder's equity.
b. Debt Service Coverage Ratio has increased due to decrease in the Earnings available for debt service,

¢. Inventory Turnover Ratio has decreased due to increase in the average inventory in proportion greater than increase in sales.

57 Loans or advances to specified persons
The Company have not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promaters, directors, KMPs and related parties (as defined under
Companies Act, 2013] either severally or jointly with any other person, that are {a) repayable on demand; or {b} without specifying any terms ar period

of repayment.

As per our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountant LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009 of Walue InfoSolutions Private Limited

e
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Arunkumar Ramdas Sunilkumar Pillai Krishnaraj Sharma

Partner Managing Director Director

Membership Number; 112433 DIN; 02226978 DIN: 03091392

Place: Mumbai Place: Bengalury Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 30, 2023 Cate: September 29, 2023 Date: September 29, 2023

i Gt DO
Swaroop MV N Lakshmammanni
Chief Flnanclal Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: A51625

PMace: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: Septernber 29, 2023 Date: September 29, 2023



iValue Infosolutions Private Limited

No. 903/1/1, 19th Main Road, 4th Sector,

H.S.R. Layout, Bangalore — 560102, Karnataka, India
CIN:U72200KA2008PTC045995|GST: 29AABCI8601B1ZW
www.ivaluegroup.com | info@ivalue.co.in

SHORTER NOTICE

SHORTER NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifteenth (15™) Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of
the Members of iValue Infosolutions Private Limited (“iValue” or “the Company”) will be held
on Saturday 30™ September 2023 at 4:00 PM at the Registered Office of the Company situated at
No. 903/1/1, 19th Main Road, 4th Sector, HSR Layout, Bangalore — 560102 to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company (standalone
and consolidated) for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, together with the Reports of
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon:

RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company (standalone and
consolidated) for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 and the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon, be and are hereby considered and adopted.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

2. To provide Letter of Comfort to IDFC First Bank Limited in relation to credit facilities of Rs. 5
Crores (Rupees Five Crores) of the subsidiary company - ASPL Info Services Private Limited:

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 185 (2) read with Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
rules made thereunder (including any statutory modifications (s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force), consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors to provide letter of comfort to IDFC First Bank Limited in relation to the credit
facilities of Rs. 5 Crores (Rupees Five Crores) to the subsidiary company - ASPL Info Services
Private Limited.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be necessary, proper and expedient to provide the letter of comfort and to
make, sign and execute on behalf of the Company, such deeds, documents, agreements,
undertakings and all other necessary documents and do all such acts, deeds and things which
are necessary to give effect this resolution.


http://www.ivaluegroup.com/
mailto:info@ivalue.co.in

iValue Infosolutions Private Limited

No. 903/1/1, 19th Main Road, 4th Sector,

H.S.R. Layout, Bangalore — 560102, Karnataka, India
CIN:U72200KA2008PTC045995|GST: 29AABCI8601B1ZW
www.ivaluegroup.com | info@ivalue.co.in

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors and Company Secretary of the Company be and
are hereby severally authorised to file necessary forms and that necessary entries be made in
the Statutory Register of Company maintained by the Company, and do all such acts, deeds
and things which are necessary to give effect this resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Bangalore Lakshmammanni

Date: Sept 30, 2023 Company Secretary
M. No.: ACS51625
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NOTE:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy must be a member of the company.

2. Proxy form duly filled in must be deposited at the registered office of the company before
the commencement of the meeting.

3. The members are requested to notify any change in their addresses to the company.
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Explanatory Statement under section 102(1) of the companies Act 2013, is annexed hereto:

Item No. 2

For working capital requirement, subsidiary company - ASPL Info Services Private Limited has
availed the credit facility of Rs. 5 Crores (Rupees Five Crores) from IDFC First Bank Limited, in the
subsidiary Sunilkumar Pillai and Krishna Raj Sharma are interested.

Your Directors have already passed resolution unanimously at their Board meeting held on 29*"
September 2023.

Your Company has no default in repayment of loan instalments or payment of interest thereon as
per the terms and conditions agreed with the Bankers/Public financial institutions.

Details about the Letter of Comfort:

1. Letter of comfort: Letter of comfort for the credit facility of Rs. 5,00,00,000 (Rupees Five Crores
only), to be provided by the Company.
Purpose of credit facility has taken by the subsidiary: Working Capital requirement
Utilisation of Loan: for its principal business activities

4. Interest payable to the Bank: 9.75% (as defined under the sanction letter
IDFC/CAD/REF/SL/2306131 dated 27-06-2023)

5. Tenure and repayment terms: 12 months and (as defined under the sanction letter
IDFC/CAD/REF/SL/2306131 dated 27-06-2023)

As per the letter of comfort, in the event the subsidiary does not have sufficient resources to pay
interest and/or repay the Facility on the due date, the Company undertake and guarantee to pay to
you without any demur or protest, upon receipt of your first written demand, all sums expressed
to be payable from time to time in respect of all present, future, actual and/or contingent liabilities
of the subsidiary to the Bank under the Loan Agreement, notwithstanding any protest, contestation
or objection of any kind whatsoever from any person and notwithstanding any judicial or other
dispute arising between the Bank and the subsidiary.

Disclosure required with regard to interest of Directors and KMP

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Bangalore Lakshmammanni
Date: Sept 30, 2023 Company Secretary
M. No.: ACS51625
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Venue of the Annual Geneal Meeting:
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